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ACTION ITEMS FROM THIS MEETING:

DTSC: Invite Bio-Rad to give an update at the RSSA CAG November 2008 meeting.  (p.10-11)

DTSC: Send info to CAG members regarding remediation of offsite toxics from Drew Resource Property (per request of Dr. Clark, p. 15-16).  

CAG Exec Committee: Write a supplemental letter with additional commentary on the Zeneca Human Health Assessment; letter will go to both DTSC and CDPH. (p. 37-38). 
CAG Exec Committee: Write letters requesting that 1) ATSDR add the Harborfront Tract to the Public Health Asessment, and 2) DTSC add the Harborfront Tract to the study/affected area for the Feasibility Study. (p. 37-38). 

PROCEEDINGS:
MR. ROBINSON:  Good evening.  We are going to get started.  We found out there has been quite a bit of illness that has hit the CAG.  I think there is a cold and flu that is going on.  So we were a little shorthanded tonight, even with the train blocking traffic.  We are going to get started.  We have a full agenda tonight, and we have some agenda changes.  

Kay, do you want to take that away?

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I am Kay Wallis.  I am very pleased to be facilitating this September meeting of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Community Advisory Group.  Welcome.  Please help yourself to an agenda which is in the back of the room on the gold colored paper.  And there are also materials back there that relate to different parts of tonight's program.  So please help yourself.  

Also, please help yourself to refreshments that are courtesy this evening of Brooks Street.  Thank you very much, and an anonymous donor.  As facilitator, it is my primary responsibility to keep the group on time and on topic.  So the agenda is an important tool to use toward that end.  

After we do an agenda review I will be doing a review of just a couple of process points as well.  One thing that has changed on the agenda, the gold colored page that you have, that is instead of us starting with the feedback from Harborfront Tract property and business owners, we will be pushing that later in the program.  

That will follow the break, and instead we'll go back to the usual format which is to begin with the Cherokee Simeon Ventures update and the DTSC update as well.  And I don't know between the two groups if DTSC will go first or Cherokee Simeon, but one of the two groups will go first, and after 15 minutes each there will be a joint question and answer session, as we usually have.  

That will be followed around 7:25, if we are on time, with a break, and then we will get into that Harborfront Tract property and business owners's feedback section.  We will then move into the usual Toxics Committee update.  That will be followed by a brief public comment period.  And then we will conclude with a very brief session on committee updates and closing with approval of prior meeting minutes, pending the arrival of our Secretary covering question slips and final wrap up.  

So thank you for making note of that agenda change, and we are sorry it was very last minute, so we weren't able to make copies in time.  A couple of process points before we jump into the "content" portion of the program.  We have been using a couple of tools like the agenda to help us stay on time and on topic.  Another tool that we have been using is the action item list.  And this is the place where anything that comes up that will require concrete additional action follow up action can be recorded right here on the action item list.  

We will also assign a primary person and a specific time line to the accomplishment of the action item.  This is also a place where we can be sure to capture items that may come up in the course of conversation that don't fall within the purview of tonight's agenda, or perhaps they are topics that we simply don't have time to address as the group wants to.  So, again, we can come up with an action item and make sure that the topic or the issue is addressed at another date, at another time with the appropriate people involved.  So we have the action item list.  We also have these green slips available to CAG members here up at the tables and also to the audience on the back table.  And these are to record either questions or new agenda requests.  

Now during our comments and question periods, certainly people are encouraged to ask their questions verbally.  Sometimes it can be helpful in the course of a conversation or a discussion to first record what you think your comment or question might be.  It just helps to organize your thoughts.  The thing that is useful about these slips, too, is for some reason if we can't get to all of the questions or comments that come up this is a way to capture it, submit to the CAG Executive Committee, and then make sure there is appropriate follow up to whatever the question or comment was.  

So we have the green question slips, which also if someone has an agenda item for the future meeting that they would like to request, this is always the place to record that.  And we'll be making sure this gets to the Chair or the Secretary.  So we have these green slips.  The third thing too, we have been asking people, which has really helped us stay on time, which is while formulating the question we can keep the individual comments or questions to about two minutes.  Sometimes you are able to go a little longer than that.  That really helps us to ensure that we can hear as many comments or questions as possible.  And I haven't had to use it.  I do have a timer, but people have been great about limiting themselves to the two minute timeframe.  

So we have the action item list, we have a two minute or so limit on questions or comments, and then we have the green action item slips, the green question slips.  So if there is no other questions or thoughts about the agenda or about our process, I will turn it over to either representative    the representative from DTSC, Ms. Cook.  Thank you.

MS. COOK:  The first thing I would like to do is introduce two new DTSC participants who are working on this project.  As you are aware, Diane Fowler did the ungracious thing of retiring a couple of months ago, and Nancy Cook abandoned us to go work for the State Regional Quality Control Board.  

So I would like to introduce the people who are replacing them.  Larry Woodson is the first line supervisor in the public participation group.  And Yvette LaDuke is the public participation person who will be assigned the projects that involve the activities surrounding the area where this CAG oversees.  Okay.  And I think if not    Yvette will be handing out her business cards to all of you so that you can actually    if you have any questions or any issues or things that you would like to direct to them, please feel free to give her a call.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  How about a phone number?  

MS. LADUKE:  I have a few cards here, but let me go ahead and give all of you my phone number.  I have a toll free phone number.  It is 1 866 495 5651.  And then you will press 3 to reach my office and then press 2 to reach my desk directly.  So again, that is 1 866 495 5651.  Then you will press 3 and then 2.  You will reach me directly.  And I will leave a stack of my business cards up here.  Anyone who wants to grab one, please feel free.  Thank you.

MS. COOK:  And I guess the next thing is I want to point out the highlights that exist in the report.  I just want to make sure that everybody has a copy of the report.  We have copies of it in the back of room, if necessary.  Okay.  

The first thing on the Zeneca report is that the Department has approved the historical preview of radiological uses in the gamma survey soil sampling report.  This is the report that we had worked with members of the CAG as part of the issues and concerns over the last six months.  So we have approved that report which is incorporated, incorporates responses to comments that have been received.  What we are also expecting to happen this month is we will be receiving the sampling report for the soil sampling that was done recently.  That report will be coming in in September.  And I believe that we are trying to coordinate to put together a meeting in the October timeframe with members of the CAG, the Department of Public Health, and other parties with regards to what those sampling results say.  So that is moving forward.  

Also during this next month we are going to begin repairing the temporary cap that exists on Lot Three.  Also during this month we are also expecting to receive the pore water sampling results that the Department has approved, review an approval of that.  So that will be coming in, hopefully, within the next 30 days.  

On Harborfront site I just want to reiterate, as I stated it last month, one of the executive orders that was issued by the Governor was to result in suspending of all State contracts.  So as a result of that the State does not have his contractor available unless we have an emergency response situation.  So the work on the Harborfront business area has been suspended until a State budget has been passed.  

And I will give my own plea.  Anything you guys can figure out how to do to get them to move forward, lock them in the room, whatever it takes to get a budget passed, we all would like that to happen.  There are a number of us, number of parties both publically    and the public is hurting as much as State employees.

With regards to the UC Richmond Field Station, the Department will shortly be issuing a time critical removal to deal with the two campfire ash locations that we have discussed in previous meetings.  So that work will be done before the rainy season starts.  Lastly, at last month's CAG meeting, a member of the CAG stated that occupants from the Richmond Field Station were being asked to move to the offices in the Zeneca, in the Zeneca Stauffer building.  There are three buildings that exist there.  

I wanted to report back to the CAG that that was looked into.  And it seems there was a misunderstanding of what that meant.  There are no current plans to move anybody from the Richmond Field Station into any of the buildings of the former Zeneca Stauffer building.  Okay.  

BioRad.  We are reviewing two additional treatability studies.  There is a five year review for Marina Bay that hopefully will be submitted in the October time period, and we'll make sure you get a copy of that.  And we'll move forward with review of commenting on that.  

Stege Marsh, which is another project that has been on our list of "to dos" for a long time, Union Pacific went back, looked at the lead impacted soil back areas, and based on the information and activities that are going there, the cost of removal was projected to be $2.6 million, which will mean that a removal action workplan is not an option anymore.  So they are going to be looking at a Remedial Action Plan.  As a result of that they're kind of stepping back and looking at the site as a whole.  So it is not being looked at as something that can be done quickly.  Hopefully we are going to be meeting with them in the next 30 days after they have gotten past their sticker shock and figuring out what the next steps are.

MS. PADGETT:  How about Blair Landfill?

MS. COOK:  Blair Landfill, which is    it's kind of between the Harborfront    it's hard to describe where Blair Landfill is. 

MS. PADGETT:  Right there. 

MS. COOK:  Okay.  It is in that location?  The DTSC reviewed and approved the responses to the soil gas investigation.  And based on that we are trying to figure out    internally we are trying to figure out what next steps need to be done.  So we need to sit back internally and figure out how to go, where we need to go on that project.  I believe that all data is    has been uploaded onto EnviroStor.  And I am hoping, based on that, everything is okay.  Dr. Esposito?  

DR. ESPOSITO:  Everything is fine. 

MS. COOK:  I know there was a problem there.  But I am hoping it was successful.  The EnviroStor is very important to us.  So that is all that I have to report.  And I will turn this over to, I believe, Tom Kambe.

MR. KAMBE:  Thank you.  Barbara, the only thing that I have to report is Lynn Nakashima was asked several questions asking whether the processing    the CEQA processing had started.  And it has not.  There is no application filed or nothing along those lines.  I think Michelle had a couple of questions to respond to from the last meeting.  So I will let her. 

DR. KING:  Thanks, Tom.  At the last meeting there were a couple of questions raised by Joe Robinson and by David Kim regarding some health and safety concerns during the removal and Remedial Action Plan that was being implemented for VOCs and PCBs.  And, first, Joe, I think you were asking about sort of the level of training and what type of updates the field people actually had.  

So all of the workers that were out there on behalf of the contractor were 40 hour health-and-safety trained.  And they all reviewed the health and safety plan purportedly before they went out there.  And each day before they started work they would have a morning tailgate meeting where they would have a different safety topic discussed each day.  In the beginning of the job it was very much associated with the types of contaminants around there.  

And the fact is that they actually started the work initially in respirators, and they had a VOC monitor out there.  And once they were comfortable they started out in the hottest area with the highest VOC concentrations.  Once they were comfortable they weren't working in these significant exposures they stopped wearing their respirators.  So they had these daily updates that apparently are signed and put in their personnel files.  

So that was the daily training.  David, I think you were more concerned about the trucking company and the trucking personnel.  And my understanding on that front is that the trucking company was provided with all of the analytical data because they are the ones that actually do the profiling to get the soil accepted into the landfill for disposal.  So the trucking company definitely knew what was in the material and the soils.  

And what they do is before they start a job they gather all the truckers together and basically do a pre meeting where they discuss what the contaminants are and the site sensitivities and things like that.  So that is my understanding of what the information was that was conveyed to the parties.  That's all I have for today.

MS. WALLIS:  We'll begin the question and answer period for both DTSC and Cherokee Simeon.

MS. PADGETT:  Can I borrow the microphone? 

MS. WALLIS:  We have a question from Ms. Padgett.

MS. PADGETT:  I have a question about the lagoons, otherwise known as the chemical evaporation ponds.  It says, "DTSC met with the site responsible parties to discuss the fresh water lagoons."  We know them as the chemical evaporation ponds.  "The scoping work assessment work plan will be prepared and submitted to DTSC for review."  If I remember correctly, there was a sampling plan for those areas and samples were taken.  I don't remember sample results being loaded on and EnviroStor being made available to the CAG.

MS. COOK:  We don't have it.  The draft, we don't even have a report.  We don't have a report.  We don't have to have a sampling report to be able to load.  What we have are data sheets of some sort.  So it is best that we provide the sampling report and results and all of that information as one packet. 

MS. PADGETT:  All right.  The reason I am asking is that previously what we have seen in the steps that we have gone through and we have come to kind of expect the process to go.  And maybe I am off here and you can correct me.  Usually we see a sampling plan.  Then we see sample results.  Then we see a risk assessment.  So we are kind of    it's been a while since the samples were taken.  And to move forward with a risk assessment without any knowledge of sampling results is for us just a little    just seems it's a step ahead of itself for us.

MS. COOK:  But it is accepted that if they know that the results    you know, what the data is showing is that there are chemicals there and that they will have to do a risk assessment.  So they'll both come in together, at least with regards to what the sample results are and the scoping document that goes with it.  And the scoping document is kind of like a work plan.  It is kind of sitting there describing what type of risk assessment you are going to do, what are the parameters you are going to look at, and things along that line.  It is not actually a risk assessment.  Looking at the scoping document would be like a workplan for an eco risk assessment.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  Help us with one    putting it in perspective in the steps that we have been through before.  Previously on Lots One, Two, and Three we went through Current Conditions and then we went through some more sampling plans so that we could bring the Current Conditions and characterize the site more fully.  

In this case we are skipping Current Conditions and Remedial Investigation Report, and we are not even doing anything like that.  We are just doing a sampling plan and going into a risk assessment.

MS. COOK:  The purpose of a sampling plan is to define what type of contaminations exist.  The purpose of a risk assessment is to define the threat associated with it.  So the cleanup plan or whatever would happen after that document.  They just know that based on the results that they have that they are going to have to do a risk assessment.  So they are taking the initiative to move forward on that part of the project and move it forward.  Whether or not the parameters of the risk assessment will have to be modified based on what the sample results show and what type of habitat exists there and how it has to be looked at.  

So it is really at the beginning of the process.  Over here it is just looking at what type of an eco risk type of activity.  So there is a lot more evaluations and things that have to be worked out with the eco tox people as to what are all the things they have to do, and quite often it means they have to do more data gathering and data collection. 

MS. PADGETT:  Would it be fair to say that we are characterizing the site? 

MS. COOK:  For the fresh water lagoons, yes.  

MS. PADGETT:  So we are in the characterization stage.

MS. COOK:  The characterization stage as well as an idea of the evaluation of the threat that it represents.  So it is a combination of the two. 

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  That helps a lot.  So we are preliminary.  It is early.  

MS. COOK:  Yes.

MS. PADGETT:  It is not way down the line.  When the term "risk assessment" is given it just seems like it is further down the line.  But I understand now.  It is early.  And on the BioRad, is there any word on how that chloroform plume is doing?  For the rest of the public, BioRad has a chloroform plume under their property that has reached the northern edge of Meeker Slough.  And they have had an order from DTSC, I believe, to get that thing cleaned up.  And they have been doing some pumping and cleaning.  So I don't know if there is anybody here that can give us any information on that.

MS. COOK:  I think all what it is is that the current system actually is working.  It is ensuring that no releases are occurring into the Slough area.  What the problem is is that this treatment technology is very, very expensive.  So they are looking at different alternatives that will help them complete the cleanup faster and evaluate    something that might not be as energy producing requirements attached to it.  Because you are pumping the water out, having to treat it, and that requires quite a bit of energy.  If there are other ways of dealing with the problem, that's what they would like to explore.  And maybe what we should look at as an option    I know that BioRad came and gave a presentation of the CAG quite a while ago. 

MS. PADGETT:  A year ago November.  

MS. COOK:  Maybe what we could look at doing is seeing if BioRad's consultant would be willing to come and give a presentation of the effectiveness of the treatability of the site that was done in the past and what their new proposals they are looking at or what they hope to gain from that as an option.  Before I end that conversation, is this something that the CAG should ask BioRad to come, or would you like us to go back to our right to do that?

MR. ROBINSON:  I think we would prefer you to do that. 

MS. COOK:  Okay.

MS. WALLIS:  Would you like that recorded as an action item? 

MR. ROBINSON:  Yeah.  That would be appropriate.

MS. COOK:  Do you have an idea of what month? 

MR. ROBINSON:  December.

MS. PADGETT:  November, maybe.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I had a question.

MS. WALLIS:  Excuse me, Dr. Esposito.  I just want to make sure I capture this real quick.  I just wanted to say for any late arrivals in the audience or on the CAG, we have switched the agenda a little bit, so we have moved up from the agenda that is in the back, the DTSC and the CSV updates, and now we are in the question period.  The Harborfront business and property owners' piece has been pushed down later in the agenda.  Just for any latecomers I want to clear that up.  

So invite BioRad to present at the December CAG.  And Ms. Cook, are you the person, the point person for the item?  

MS. COOK:  It is either I or Lynn Nakashima.  One of us.

MS. WALLIS:  Okay.  And the invitation, I understand that would be potentially for the December meeting? 

MS. COOK:  Yes.

MS. WALLIS:  So the action would take place in what kind of time line?  

MS. COOK:  We'll talk to them within the next month and we'll work with Carolyn. 

MR. ROBINSON:  We were under the impression that the November agenda would be tight because it is CEQA 101, which is now in October.  I think it would be better for the November CAG meeting rather than December.  Could we change that?  

MS. COOK:  That would be better because the holiday season has a lot of problems.  So we'll try for November.

MS. WALLIS:  Duly noted to invite the BioRad representative to the November CAG within one month.  And I am going to put Barbara Cook or Lynn    I am writing an abbreviation here as the point people for the invitation.  Thank you.  And Dr. Esposito and then Dr. Clark.

DR. ESPOSITO:  The question I have is more of a comment about the upcoming meeting on radiological data review for the Zeneca site.  And since I think we are sort of now winding down on this issue, I thought it would be interesting for us to have on hand not only the data for the Zeneca site, old and new, but also the previous day that was completed for Booker T. Anderson Park, which would be the control area for this radiological background, the data for the Harborfront Tract area which was originally collected and then additional samples, which Weiss Associates took a radiological sampling which I don't think which we have seen the results of yet so that we could have all of the data together for the final look see.

MS. COOK:  Is this for the October meeting that I briefly discussed?   

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes.  To my knowledge, we have never seen the new Weiss data for Harborfront Tract.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Is it the Harborfront Tract? 

MS. COOK:  Let us send you an e mail message as to where it is. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you.  So that is the new data.  

MS. COOK:  Yes.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you.

MS. COOK:  I would like to have clarification.  As long as the data is available, that's all that you need or are you asking us to make the data available at the October meeting or prior to the meeting or    I just want to make sure I know what is expected of me. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  My goal is for us not to consider the radiological data for the Zeneca site piecemeal, but rather to look at the areas of interest and the areas that we have designated as controls all together.  And I think it is in the interest of the Harborfront community as well as Zeneca and the CAG to see it all together.

MS. COOK:  Okay.  This is for the October meeting that is being planned?  

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes.

MS. COOK:  Okay.

DR. CLARK:  Two questions.  One, I recall your responding to the question I raised about the experimental    possible experimental incinerator or whatever they are terming it at the    I believe the question was raised some type of experimental incinerator at the UC Field Station.  Remember that?  

MS. COOK:  Yes.

DR. CLARK:  What was that?  I didn't get the message.

MS. COOK:  There was a written response.  I don't have the response with us.  We'll have to track it down.  We can mail it to you.  I don't know the answer off of the top of my head.

DR. CLARK:  Sure.  Could you forward that to me, E mail that to me?  The other question is is there a projected time line for the overall cleanup of the Zeneca site? 

MS. COOK:  What I am expecting is that before the end of this calendar year we will, as we discussed at the last month    and I guess at the last meeting    is that we will provide to the CAG the Feasibility Study/Remedial Action Plan.  So I am assuming that the remedy selection document with regards to this project as it relates to Lot One, Two, and Three, not the lagoons or the southeast parcel, will be available for public comment next summer, next spring/summer time period.  When it is implemented and how it is done, I think there are    I don't know the answers to those questions.

MS. PADGETT:  Barbara, on the Feasibility Study Remedial Action Plan, in the last meeting you expressed some conflict for DTSC about the Feasibility Study Remedial Action Plan needing to be open to the public or needing to be set up for public review and comment.  And I just heard you say that perhaps that is going to come sometime in June.  And part of the reason we, the Community Advisory Group and members of the community, have not seen the early drafts of the Feasibility Study and Removal Action Plan were that you hadn't figured out how to make that available to us.  

And it sounds like you are moving through that to find a way to make it available to us.  And if you are, I want to say how much we appreciate that to participate in seeing it prior to it being open for public comment. 

MS. COOK:  Yes.  And I think that what I asked the CAG's commitment was that I would do that and that we would move through it, but that I would not be put in the position    because the Remedial Action Plan is a formal document that requires DTSC's formal response    that the Department would not prepare any type of formal response, no other information.  Your comments and your information would be directly provided to the contractors and to CSV and Zeneca as part of information that you are preliminarily giving them comments on because otherwise I have a legal obligation to prepare a written response.  

So I am assuming that sometime during the month, before the end of the calendar year you will be getting a draft of the Feasibility Study, draft Feasibility Study, a draft Feasibility Study that will cover Lot One, Two, and Three only.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  And is there any update on beryllium?

MS. COOK:  Actually, you seem to have more information.  What we both know is we know that the memo has been drafted.  We know that it is going through management review.  We are hoping    I was hoping that it would get out before here.  But we are shooting before the end of the month.  And it appears that I know that Peter had made a comment at the last meeting that he was hoping he could get an OEHHA representative to come to this meeting.

MS. PADGETT:  And they made a commitment to come to the next meeting or the following meeting.

MS. COOK:  Okay.  So we are all on the same page as to where we stand. 

MS. PADGETT:  For the public, the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, OEHHA for short, is the organization within the State that is doing reevaluation and coming out with a paper on the levels of beryllium that are acceptable, acceptable risk levels, or something like that.  And we are going to use the document to then apply to the Zeneca Cherokee site.  Did I summarize that?

MS. COOK:  I think there were a lot of questions associated with a screening level number that had been generated a number of years ago.  So they have gone back and reevaluated it and will come back with a memo addressing whatever the issue is.  And none of us really know what the memo says. 

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you.

MS. COOK:  We will apply whatever comes from that memo as it relates to the site.

MS. WALLIS:  Additional questions or comments from CAG members before I give it to the audience?  Dr. Clark? 

DR. CLARK:  So does that mean that    this is a hypothetical at this particular point because the report has not come out yet, but assuming the worst case, that you have to go back in and do some more, you know, cleanup, is there resources for that? 

MS. COOK:  Well, it will dictate how    what alternative ultimately is chosen.  So it ends up being an evaluation as part of the alternatives that feed into the Feasibility Study and evaluation.  Most alternatives in Feasibility studies start from do nothing, because that is basically the baseline, to the worst case    to the opposite extreme which means you dig everything up and haul it away.  So all of the    all of the alternatives hopefully are being evaluated in the risk assessment.  It just impacts which alternative you ultimately choose.

DR. CLARK:  Okay.  So I assume that you are saying that in spite of whatever the findings are that you already have the resources for the worse case scenario anyway, so it really wouldn't make any difference. 

MS. COOK:  I can only speak to the fact that I am reviewing the documents and what the documents do.  The State is not the agency that would ultimately implement it as to the worst case.  I don't know the answer to that question.  And I think you are right.  I think it is a little premature for us to work through that issue right now.

MS. WALLIS:  Questions or comments from the audience for either DTSC or Cherokee Simeon Ventures?  And please state your name for the transcriptionist.  

MR. LOPEZ:  Good evening, CAG members and DTSC representatives.  My name is Frank Lopez.  I have been in Richmond for 65 years.  I attended school here.  I raised my children here.  And I operate my business here.  My business and property, Creative Sign Company, is located on South 50th Street in the Harborfront Tract area.  On November 19th I will have been in business in Richmond for over 40 years.  

As a member of the community I have great concerns regarding that of my health and that of my employees.  I have invested in new state of the art equipment and have introduced new methods to operate in a safer manner so I am on board.  Now I am faced with a new problem.  Originally I refinanced my building because interest rates had dropped considerably.  It was sort of a no brainer.  To do so the property had to be appraised.  An appraiser came out, inspected, measured and took pictures and notes.  Two weeks later I received his appraisal, but prior to receiving his report I consulted with a bank, two realtors, and a friend who is also an appraiser.  

Each of them told me that in their experience and knowledge the property should appraise at between 1.2 and 1.4 million.  Well, I opened the appraisal and, surprise, it came in at 800,000, at least 30 percent under value.  So I related my information to the appraiser, and he said that my friends were correct.  He said that he appreciated that the appraisal was at 800,000 because    and these are his words    "You are sitting on a sea of sludge, on toxic sludge."  

And this was said before any of the maps to the plumes were released.  That is interesting that to come from an appraiser who    that is the first building that he appraised in that area.  And it brings me to the real and serious problem of who is going to clean up and stop the plume of toxic chemicals.  Well, the obvious answer should be the people and companies who created it in the first place. 

But my understanding is that Zeneca Cherokee has indicated they are cleaning up their property, and this is great news.  However, the maps I have seen show the cleanup plan stops at their property lines.  I feel their responsibility is to complete the project and clean up what they caused to be under our property also.  

I am asking DTSC, don't leave us with a dangerous problem under our building that could affect our health and the future property owners in the area.  And I am appealing to you to enforce the cleanup by Zeneca Cherokee to include the Harborfront Tract project.  If I have been incorrect in that, I would like to know.  But that is my understanding, and I am very concerned about it.  Thank you.

MS. COOK:  To some extent I would like to meet your appraiser.  So if you would be willing to give us his name and telephone number we would be glad to talk to him as to what he is basing his information on.  Okay?  You know, I can't    I cannot    it is not within our authority or evaluation to get involved in appraisals.  That is outside of our control and outside of our issues.  

The Department's obligation and requirements are that we will require, in this case, the Cherokee parties that are listed on the order, they are legally required to clean up the property and anywhere that their contamination has migrated to.  That is what the law states and that is what they will be required to do.  But I guess I need to understand as to what is the basis of what he is defining as the sludge on your property and what is the information that he has to substantiate that.  

And, you know, we can sit down here and discuss the issues with him.  We can get him into our interpretation of what it means, where the issues are.  The fact that he hasn't done an appraisal in your neighborhood, you know, kind of makes me wonder what he is looking at.  So we would very much like to    the Department is willing to sit down and talk to this appraiser to understand what information he has used to conduct his assessments.

MR. LOPEZ:  The real problem isn't so much    I will see what I can do by getting his information to you, but the real problem that I am concerned about is does it stop at their property line or will it include us also to protect us.  And I think you just answered.  And I hope that is the case and I also hope that it is documented so that I could see it.  I am really concerned. 

MS. COOK:  Well, as the Feasibility Remedial Action Plan that will be coming out, that lays out a lot of the information with regards to what needs to be done, why it needs to be done.  I don't know exactly where your property is in relation to everything.  

And, you know, we are looking at some of the properties    we are already looking at the properties in the Harborfront business property because of the historic previous cleanup operations on that property.  So I just need to go back and look at where    see what is the issue and what is this person    what are they basing their comments on.  Okay.  

So if you can provide    if you can provide    I didn't bring any business cards with me.  I will go outside and get one.  But I will give you my business card, and if you could provide me their name and number the Department will be willing to talk to them.

MR. LOPEZ:  Okay.  And in regards to you    you said the State of California, it is the law they clean up what they did regardless of where it flows to?

MS. COOK:  That is correct.  That is what the law states. 

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Clark?  

DR. CLARK:  I hear what you are saying, Barbara, about what the law is saying.  But it seems to me like I have a question on that because, as I recall, the site in north Richmond, where it was the scrap belt site, which was a Superfund site and the Laotian family was living next to it, where the contamination had spread into their garden area.  And the County Health Department had to relocate the family.  I am not aware that any cleanup took place on that particular site, that particular part they were living at, because of the fact that that was not the designated Superfund site that the true scrap metal site was fenced off, and that was supposedly remediated.  But the site adjacent to it across the fence where the Laotians were living at, I am not aware that anything happened there in terms of any cleanup. 

MS. COOK:  I will go back to that one because I will disagree.  I think that ultimately what happened is that it was required that that material be dug up and hauled away.  But I will go back and verify    we will be dating both of us if we both outline when that occurred.  But I will go back and I will verify that, Henry, and I will let you know next month.

MS. PADGETT:  Are we moving into the other agenda item? 

MR. ROBINSON:  No.  We are still in the question and answer period.

MS. WALLIS:  Right, for DTSC and Cherokee Simeon.  So there was a question from the audience whether the report or the finding out about the information of the Laotian    

MS. COOK:  It is the Drew Resource Facility.

MS. WALLIS:  If the CAG wants that recorded as an action item.  Dr. Clark? 

DR. CLARK:  Yes.

MS. WALLIS:  So if you wouldn't mind, Ms. Cook, just give me a very brief description of what the action item is. 

MS. COOK:  Basically it is looking at what remediation took place on all site properties surrounding the Drew resource property.

MS. WALLIS:  Drew, D r e w? 

MS. COOK:  Yes.

MS. WALLIS:  I'm sorry.  Say that again.  Regarding the Drew...

MS. COOK:  Off site properties near the Drew Resources, the Drew Resources Property.

MS. WALLIS:  And by the next CAG meeting is the time line that you gave for that? 

MS. COOK:  I hope so.  We may have archived the files.  I will give a report back in the next meeting.  If I have to pull the files out and archive it, it may take a little bit longer.

MS. WALLIS:  October CAG.  Thank you.  And did I see a hand from the audience?  And please state your name for the transcriptionist.  

MR. HARRIS:  Bourke Harris, 4925 Seaport.  I have something to say on this, and I think it would be appropriate to say it now.  It is the same subject.  I was going to say it later.  It is only going to take me a few minutes.

MS. PADGETT:  Do you want your slides up? 

MR. HARRIS:  So if it is okay I would like to go forward with that.

MS. WALLIS:  That is the pleasure of the CAG.  We are reaching the end of the question and answer period. 

MR. ROBINSON:  Before we do that, I would like to hear if there is any other questions from the audience about this question and answer period to DTSC and CSV.  Because if there are, I don't mean to cut you off, but I think it might be a smoother transition.  Do we have a read on how many questions there are in the audience?

MS. WALLIS:  Additional questions or comments for this Q and A period from the audience or from the CAG?  So to do a quick time check, we are at   

MR. ROBINSON:  We are at 7:25.  We are at the break point.  And I would like to    we started a little bit late, and I would like to continue on, as long as we are on that thread of thought and then break after.

MS. WALLIS:  Okay.  So we'll hear these comments from the gentleman and then do our break.  Thank you.  Please proceed.  

MR. HARRIS:  I am Bourke Harris, 4925 Seaport.  My business is right here, right in the center.  And it has become increasingly clear to me that this Zeneca property    and I will allege that there is a nexus with the Blair Landfill in this 1959 photo.  This property here has already been cited with a violation, it's my understanding, of being an unlicensed hazardous waste facility.  And it's becoming clear that an artificial boundary is simply inappropriate to limit the inquiry and the remediation at that point.  

So the next site.  So what I have done is I have taken a series of slides and information.  And I have tried to have tried to superimpose them.  And what I am trying to do is argue that there is sufficient information before us already to increase the scope of this inquiry.  You can see the “Boot” here.  So I have used this as my assumption and my understanding of the extent of the inquiry with respect to Zeneca.  And so next slide, please.  

So in the health assessment report it is very clear not only with the TCE but with other compounds that there is a plume.  I don't think there is any argument that there is not a plume.  This plume extends underneath my property which is right there.  And it is at its highest noted concentration.  And if you examine this you will note that the concentrations decrease as they move away from the Zeneca property, which to my mind is an indication of the direction of flow.  Next slide, please.  

So when you consider all of this, this area is surrounded by Zeneca, by the ponds which you have just heard there is new concern about the ponds, apparently, and there is going to be new action and new remediation, new concerns there.  It is surrounded by Blair.  And I will argue there is a nexus to Zeneca here.  So we have this area right here that is surrounded by a sea of toxicity.  Next slide, please.  

So I superimposed from the health assessment the plume as it extends from the Zeneca property.  So to artificially draw a line and delineate and limit the scope of the inquiry seems very inappropriate to me.  So it seems obvious that it needs to be expanded.  Next slide, please.  

So another argument that supports my contention comes from the draft of the health assessment itself.  So I    this actually increased some of my concern for my own employees living    not living but working within this area.  Next slide, please.

MS. PADGETT:  Bourke, would you mind if we really grasp what this says? 

MR. HARRIS:  Well, I'll just give you my understanding of this which is that they are generally the levels of the    the gases coming off of the soil gas are low.  But what this paragraph does within the report, it raises concern about those levels being increased when there is a slab present.  There is some sort of the phenomena that due to some pressure difference it actually increases.  So the next slide. 

So if you have a plume, and a plume is well documented underneath my building and many, many other buildings, and I couple that with the report, I can expect    and the report itself raises this as an open question, raises it at a potential health hazard, that those gases can increase above a slab and within a building.  So I am using this to support my argument that it really needs to be expanded.  Next slide, please.  

So I think it is folly to draw artificial lines in a sea of toxicity, and that this entire area must be treated as one area.  I just make a very sincere, heartfelt plea for that, Barbara.

MS. COOK:  May I respond to that? 

MR. HARRIS:  Let me just    there is also a lot of information.  There has been testing in the street.  I have never gotten a good handle on this testing program.  There is also some involvement of Zeneca prior to the testing program.  What I would ask for is full disclosure of all of the information of prior testing with respect to any of these underground plumes.  So my point    this is my point.  I did it to make a graphic presentation.  And with that I will stop.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Cook? 

MS. COOK:  Can I ask that you go back a couple of slides, please?  Okay.  I will    I am probably as dangerous as you are with that little pointer.  But would you allow me to    I will try to be nice.  You know, when we start investigations there is no doubt that the investigation starts with the property line.  And what by statute the definition says that the site expands for not only the property that they own but anywhere the contamination migrates.  So let me give you an idea of who is doing what in all of the areas that you have laid out.  

You know, you have the UC Richmond Field Station over here.  You have the CSV/Zeneca.  This is the property they own.  You have Blair Landfill, which is there.  That property is actually owned by Union Pacific.  They are required at this point in time to conduct the investigation.  So work is actually going on with that one.  And, you know, they own the property, and if they    yes, I agree there is a nexus.  Because we do have, based on historical documents we do have information that shows that alum was shipped from the Stauffer operation to the Blair Landfill area along with a lot of concrete when they were doing a lot of rubble areas and a lot of other things in this landfill area here.  

This whole here area is owned by UP.  And UP is under orders to require investigations of that.  So you have the Liquid Gold site.  They have the shooting range here as well as Blair Landfill.  The issue with regards to business property sites, the issue here comes down to when we started this property the Department didn't have documentation.  That clearly demonstrates that whatever is here belongs to Zeneca.  We did a title search, that is, I suspect, on the EnviroStor, that laid out the ownership issues of the property, who owned what in there.  And what has happened is the State has been using its funding to work on Harborfront.  And that's what we are doing.  It was the State that paid for the money that went out to collect the soil gas sampling and the sampling results there.  They all have to be merged together and have a better, clearer understanding of the issues associated with that.  I agree.  But it is    you know, it is the same project manager who is looking at all of this and trying to interpret it as well as the same geologist and the same toxicologist.  So there is a lot of people who are looking at all of the sites together to figure out how they inter mesh and how they go forward.  

The Department has a philosophy because, you know, we go to court when we have to; otherwise it gets kind of expensive.  As long as someone is stepping up to the plate and doing the work, we are not going to amend the order to add anybody else.  And if Union Pacific wanted to go and add Stauffer or Crop Bayer Science to the order, they can take their own actions with regards to that, and they can come and ask the Department if they want to do it as well.  They have not done that.  

And Union Pacific is a well funded railroad company.  It is    you know, it has its line of moving trains from one end of the United States to the other, but they are someone who is on the book and required to do this work.  

So with regard to the comment that was made, yes, the Department will require, whenever contamination has migrated off site, then that party has a legal obligation to step up to the plate and take care of the problem, so to go down here and redefine the entire site, I have to go through the legal basis to demonstrate and justify the information that Zeneca is causing all of the problems associated with it.  

With regard to the Harborfront, I already know that I have a plating operation that has impacted the property associated with that.  Because of the financial situation the state knows it is going to have to step up to the plate and take care of that property.  

So right now, you know, I would like very much to understand how everybody is figuring out what they think is the cause of whatever is there.  But I would like you to kind of wait until all of the reports get together.  I am at a disadvantage right now because I can't get the Weiss reports finalized.  We can't do anything with that because the Governor has suspended all contracts.  So I guess I am just    I am kind of caught in a very difficult situation.

MR. HARRIS:  Can you go to the slide that superimposes    this slide.  Now, this slide is    I am not talking about this.  I am not talking about an isolated hard chrome site.  I am talking about a very direct plume that even has lines that go back up in here.  So it seems to me that it would be quite obvious at least to include this area.  

MS. COOK:  And we'll go back and look at that.  This will all come into the Feasibility Study.

MR. HARRIS:  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Chair?  

MR. ROBINSON:  I think we should break right now and wait for the other speakers, when Pete Weiner has arrived and we have a quorum here.  So let's have a break.

MS. WALLIS:  Very well.  We will resume the business of the meeting at 7:50.  Thank you.  

(Recess.)

MS. WALLIS:  For anyone that did not hear our previous announcements about the change in the agenda, we are now moving on to the feedback from Harborfront Tract property and business owners having already heard the DTSC and Cherokee Simeon updates and Q&A period.  So there are a couple of speakers that will assist with this next agenda item, Gary Hokkanen and Stan Teaderman, and we will be also hearing from Mr. Steve Smith.  And I believe Mr. Teaderman is going to begin this part of the session.  

MR. TEADERMAN:  Good evening.  My name is Stan Teaderman.  I'm with Allied Propane Corporation.  We are located at 5000 Seaport Avenue.  And what I would like to do, if I might, is chronologically kind of take us through the development of this area because I think that it is important for all of us to understand where we are as today's conditions and the issues by which we have developed when we first moved and purchased the property to put our propane gas facility in.  

And so, in any case, when we purchased the property in the early part of 1967, we had a great desire to locate there because we knew that the Stauffer chemical facility had been engaged into a manufacturing type facility and it had the zonings that would accommodate our type of business and the LPG business.  So we then took the privilege of meeting with the City of Richmond, the mayor, the City Manager, Council people, the staff, to let them know that we wanted to be a part of the community and if it would be an acceptable use, which, of course, we purchased the property with their blessings and we put our facility in there.  

When we had our engineering and our builders to get ready to put in our facilities everything was fine.  But when we got ready to go down to attain some application for water, we found that there was no water.  And they said, "Of course there is water."  And the water, actually city water, came into Stauffer chemical, which is their main processing plant, which is about 2,000 feet away or thereabouts.  

So we were then forced to put in the well.  We put in this well, and it was about a hundred feet deep.  And it processed about 50 gallons a minute.  So we then went ahead, had it developed, finished our facilities, and we started using the water basically for our offices, for little tiny processed water which is very negligible.  And after a couple    in a year or so we met our neighbors from Stauffer, and the gentleman said to me    they were just great people.  

They said, "Listen, you have got that nice facility.  Where did you run your water in?"  And I said, "Well, we don't have city water."  Those fire hydrants that were out there were abandoned.  So we were forced to put in this well.  So as a result, all of the properties in the Harborfront Tract, to the best of my knowledge since 1967, were forced to put in wells.  And so as we were doing this, one day the Stauffer fellow came over and said, "Listen, that water that you use, what are you using it for?"  I said, "Well, just the internal stuff."  He said, "Well, do you drink it?"  I said, "Yeah.  We are drinking it for coffee and water."  He said, "Well, it is probably okay, but," he said, "you know what would really be better is maybe if you could bring in the water."  I said, "Gosh, I am not going to put in 1500 feet of water."  

"No, no.  You could bring it in."  From that time on we transported water in five gallon jugs from my father's ranch in Napa for 16 years because they had asked after we suspended from using the water.  They have came in and asked if they could test our water.  Stauffer came in every month and tested our water.  We had never received any application or any results outside of the fact that we have    from time to time, they would ask if we were using the water.  So in any case, one of the things that we also discovered    is that marker there somewhere?

MS. PADGETT:  It is right here.  Push the red.  

MR. TEADERMAN:  Down our property, our property is located right on this block here.  And it is right behind this chemical evaporation pond.  And it really is kind of interesting for me as we have gone through this journey with this remediation, to have these people take this mischaracterization of a chemical evaporation pond.  They called it the upper and lower lagoons, and now they are calling it a habitat pond.  This is crazy.  

And, you know, it wasn't until about two years later after we were there, it was my understanding that we were going to have this pond behind it that was used for processed water in the facility.  But two, three years later we found out the effluent that was being used from the processes of their DDTs and their other variety of herbicides, pesticides all leached and went into those two ponds.  And that pond is still contiguous to our property.  

So as this thing continued to develop, when it would rain    when it would rain, the waters from Stauffer Chemical would run from the east to the west.  They would go down Seaport Avenue.  They would go down 48th, 49th, 50th and 51st Street.  

MS. PADGETT:  Stan, I think you mean from west to east.  

MR. TEADERMAN:  Yeah, from west to east.  And all of the back of the lots, all of the residual coming off that chemical plant would flood the street and would flood the back end of our property 150 feet up the street.  We didn't have access.  When we first built our facility we couldn't attain    in any case, a couple of years later we had to put another building in.  So I said these Stauffer people are wonderful friends of ours.  We worked really close together.  I said to them, "You know we are going to put another building in.  And you know we want to get into the back of our property because in the winter time we'll get water anywhere from six inches to a foot and a half, 100 feet up, and all of our neighbors would.  

So they said    and I said, "You know, you have got that ditch coming from your process plant and the streets coming in here.  And so our engineers have told us that we need to bring this material up."  In any case, they said, "What are you doing to do?"  I said, "We are going to put a 200 foot building in there across."  

A week later they said, "Could we talk to you about that?"  I said, "Sure."  They said, "We have got a proposal.  What we would like to suggest is we would like to give you an easement of the property so that you could build a building on the back of your property line.  We don't ever want anybody to get in that ditch.  We don't ever want to encroach on those ponds."

And so as a result we changed our design.  It had been very good.  But for about 14 years that whole region, that whole region from 46th to 51st Street would drain all the way through.  Then it would go down on Seaport Avenue, and that was before they put in the Bayview interchange.  

So all of these transitional issues that we have had as far as the discovery of the evaporation ponds and all of these other areas are areas that we were very sensitive to.  Now as we know, in moving forward now up until when the Stauffer and ICI Americas and Hanson and Bayer and Zeneca had the transitional property transactions, everything was fine.  Our company was very comfortable on knowing that if these people continued their operational productions of their variety of different processes, that we would have the federal and state governmental people working with them.  

And when the    when the properties and the businesses were sold, then we were not exactly sure in    I am talking about the Harborfront area, with business people, we were not really sure what was going to happen.  Well, they went ahead.  They started the remediation    their demolition in '99 and 2000.  And those of us in the Harborfront Tract were just trying to ask some fair questions on what was happening.  

And we had issues by which some of these people we found had some health issues.  And we didn't really have a lot of satisfaction.  A lot of the people you see here have had businesses and properties in there since the late '60s and developed that area.  We tried to ask questions as to what was happening.  And we were not really satisfied with the information.  

And it was through the effort of the business people and the County Health Department and ongoing discussions that we were given the privilege of meeting some of the people from the EPA out of Sacramento and eventually, in the first time in the history, I believe, of an agency, the DTSC replaced the Water Board.  

And I just want to say on behalf of ourselves how much we appreciate the dedication and the assistance that the DTSC is now providing to us.  I was going to mention some other issues as it related to Mr. Bourke Harris' comments that have already been identified.  But I think one of the things that are of real current issue here to us has to do with our current situation.  

Our current situation in this last year and a half and the business people in our area have had some challenges.  And the challenges have come very slowly, but as the DTSC has brought in these contractors    and we have had further discovery.  And if you recall there has been many questions asked in the past.  And there has been total denial as to some of these serious issues.  

And as the DTSC and the community has been closely involved, we have been able to be provided some of these issues as it relates to these environmental issues.  We now know    we know now that the contractors that came in, Weiss & Associates with DTSC, has done an inordinate amount of testing.  We now know that we have got known environmental contamination.  We know that we have underground plumes.  We know we have deep water and shallow water ground contamination.  

And so, you know, when the DTSC came in in December of '05 and did the tests, they did 11 tests.  They did one at our facility, our well and others.  They did two other deep water tests.  We did ask for results.  In March of that year we were never    we were never given any information.  

We got an informal piece of paper that showed some of the residual results and all of these results were above the minimum threshold levels.  But when we asked for the report we never got the report.  The report    the report was actually submitted to the community in October.  So it was almost 11 months before we got this report.  

When that report came out in our community    and Barbara, I would like to    is Barbara out there?  I would like to respond to a question that Mr. Harris said.  This letter came from the Contra Costa County Environmental Health Department.  And it says that the Toxics Substance Control and State of California has brought to their attention that there are at least three abandoned wells located    or more in the area of South 49th, Montgomery Mead, East Stege Marsh, and the businesses located adjacent to the eastern boundary of the Zeneca Stauffer site.  

This area is contaminated with volatile organic compounds, and the abandoned wells serve as a conduit for contamination in the underground aquifers.  Now, let me just suggest another item.  There was an item regarding Mr. Lopez's question on a financial issue with the devaluation in his properties.  Now, I can say that there are several people in the Harborfront Tract now that are currently engaged in some financial matters that have now found that they have had some significant devaluation as a direct result of some of these tests and some of these water and VOC plumes that are applicable.  

I will give you a representation as it relates to our own personal business.  We have tried a year and a half ago to get an appraisal.  I have contacted two preeminent appraisal companies to come over to take a look at our facility.  Two of these people said, "Do you realize that you are engaged in this area in one of the most toxic sites in Northern California if not the State?  And we would like    we would like to be able to be a part of that but we can't."  

And one of the fellows said, "You know, I got involved in Martinez."  And he said, "I got involved doing a remedial appraisal for a major company."  And he said, "Do you know that this company finally went broke?  I got engaged in a multimillion dollar lawsuit.  And I just can tell you that I cannot have our company provide any resources."  

He was a gentleman that was engaged in one of these big tank farms for millions of dollars that went broke over in Martinez.  We just finished    we just finished an appraisal not more than a month ago.  It took us four months, four months to get somebody that would provide us an appraisal.  And the issue here is that we finally got an appraisal.  But the covenant is they would be absolutely not responsible for any environmental responsibility period.  

So the issue is any of these business people that have businesses or property and property or businesses to suggest the fact that they are going to purchase a business and its property and get a clarity or a clearance on their phase one property is a real challenge.  And I can tell you from my experience in my business    and we bought a number of businesses throughout the California, Nevada    we might see a realized business.  It might look really good.  But I will tell you, we will take a look at the business and at the same time we will look at the environmental.  And I can just tell you from our perspective if we don't have a clearance, environmentally, we won't buy it and we have walked away.  

Those businesses, those property owners in the Harborfront Tract, are now exposed to a known hazardous environmental encroachment.  They have put in artificial lines.  And, Barbara, I am happy to know that you said that maybe the property lines, but it is very obviously when they started the environmental with Stauffer or Zeneca that they had property lines.  And Harborfront is right in the middle of the toe of that boot.  

So any of the residuals as it relates to any of the waters    and we continue to have discoveries, and all I can tell you is that I would hope    I would ask DTSC to please consider incorporating all of the businesses and all of the property owners in the Harborfront Tract.  It's been identified.  There are issues by which we have all had to be challenged, and it suggests the fact that any one of us sitting in this room would have a buyer that would buy their business or that property without getting a property clearance is a non starter.  

It is much more serious    there are two businesses in that area that have tenants because of the unknown and the continued environmental one of them    one of them is going to possibly lose their major tenant.  And they incorporate the whole property and the building.  There is another one, there is another business down there that is a well operated business, and they have been trying to get a permit from the City of Richmond for eight months, eight months.  

And I don't know when it is, but we were just told that there is environmental concerns as it relates to that area.  I don't know if it is a zoning issue.  We are all in M4 zoning.  We should have the privilege of putting the business back in there.  I can tell you, our type of business has to have a buffer zone.  We want a buffer zone so that we can operate our business and not encroach on others.  

There is another one that I can tell you because of the devaluation, there is a pending lawsuit right now.  And the principals within    one business and one property are engaged as I speak.  Now is that just five.  And Mr. Lopez and Mr. Bourke, to say nothing about the possibility of an environmental exposure to our employees.  

I thank you for the time.  I would like to ask again, we from the Harborfront Tract make a passionate request that DTSC incorporates the Harborfront Tract within this remediation action plan.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Mr. Teaderman.  And let's move on, then, to our next speaker, Mr. Hokkanen.  

MR. HOKKANEN:  Thank you very much.  My name is Gary Hokkanen, and I am an environmental consultant.  I am here representing Allied Propane and representing Mr. Teaderman's interests in the matters that we are discussing, specifically the impacts and the potential impacts of the sites surrounding, as we have been discussing, the Harborfront Tract. 

My purpose tonight is twofold, one to introduce myself and let you know what I am doing right now and what I am going to be doing for Mr. Teaderman into the future.  And, two, I also want to make some comments that Mr. Harris and Mr. Teaderman have discussed about the work that Weiss Associates has done and what our feelings are about how that information should be used and how it should be incorporated into the bigger picture.  

First off, as I mentioned, my intent is to examine the impact of the Zeneca site and other sites surrounding the Harborfront Tract on the Allied Propane property and what sort of impact those sites have had on his property and what that means to his business.  

Just a little bit of a bio so you know my background.  My technical background is as an engineer and as a hydrogeologist.  I started my career at USEPA Region 9 in 1980.  At that point in time I got involved in the very, very early stages of the Superfund program.  And for the last 28 years I have been involved in the investigation and cleanup of sites like this across the country, about 35 states by my last count.  

So what I started to do is examine the documents related to the Zeneca site.  And particularly I am interested in the Blair Landfill which is immediately kitty corner to the Allied Propane property.  The lagoons that we have discussed, the one that is immediately to the south, particularly of the Allied Propane properties, is of some interest. 

And my ultimate goal is to examine what impact it has had on the Harborfront Tract in general and on Stan's property in particular.  I am going to continue to examine documents and follow the process as we go along.  As far as the Weiss Associates information, I have looked at their documents.  And the one of most interest was the first one generated in October of 2006 where they reported on the    particularly on the groundwater samples that they took.  

They got a good snapshot of what the groundwater conditions were under the Harborfront Tract.  That data clearly shows that there are TCE and DCE plumes underneath the Harborfront Tract.  That data also seems to me shows that they are connected to the plumes associated with the Zeneca property.  

And, again, it has been discussed before, from a technical standpoint and a remediation standpoint it makes very good sense to incorporate that area from a groundwater standpoint with the larger area.  It doesn't make a lot of sense to split up plumes into different areas and address them.  

Typically and cost effectively those are usually handled as a whole plume.  And so it makes very good sense from my standpoint to include the known groundwater contamination in the Harborfront Tract and in the Zeneca FS and Remedial Action Plan.  And I hope that happens.  Thank you very much.

MS. WALLIS:  And we were going to hear from Mr. Steve Smith.  And remind me where.  Okay.  Mr. Smith?

MR. SMITH:  Thank you.  I don't have three hands.  Can everyone hear me?  Good.  Before I get to what I actually came to talk about, Stan, you mentioned a few things and the other people here might be interested.  I could introduce myself, sort of.  I have the Smith & Company on the south side of the Bayview Avenue overpass.  You will see a big building that says "Cure Paint Failure with Clear Penetrating Epoxy Sealer."  That is me.  I invented that stuff in 1972.  The glue is painted on the wood so the paint doesn't fail and the wood doesn't rot.  And there is business making those kinds of things.  

Also for the last few years I have been spending most of my time as a consulting scientist.  I got out of college with a master's degree in physics and the equivalent experience in chemistry and went to work in the aerospace electronics industry and wandered into the paint and glue business in the early '70s.  And after we won the Cold War in the late 80s I worked on that full time.  But I got back to doing science in the last few years which is what I really like.  

So I was sharing a building with a friend of mine, Harold Chapman.  This was at 1220 South 49th Street, which doesn't exist any more.  After the Hoffman Freeway was put in the property got rearranged.  I got relocated.  That sort of ended up in Zeneca's back yard or something like that.  

Now, Stan, and from time to time Harold Chapman and I would just run into Elwood Trimke.  I don't know if you remember him.  He was the general manager at Stauffer.  He told me they had a little accident back there somewhere in the middle late '70s.  I am not sure exactly.  They had an underground Xylene tank that leaked.  And that might be why they were sampling your water.  

I don't know if you knew about that or not.  Anyway, that's what that was.  Elwood also told me about what was going into their settling pond.  They had some manufacturing process that used a lot of water to wash whatever they were making, probably some kind of herbicide or something.  I don't know.  But there was a lot of water that was used as processed water washing what they were making.  

The water picked up contaminants.  And so they had these huge activated charcoal filters that they ran the water through and this filtered out the contaminants.  And then they could discharge the water out into the Bay.  But every once in a while    these were big steel tanks like six feet in diameter and 15 feet high, something like that.  Everyone once in a while they had to clean out the activated charcoal.  They didn't want to throw it away so they reused it.  So they back flushed the filters.  And this is what went into the settling ponds.  And the back flush water was just there, and it evaporated, and whatever came from the filters just ended up accumulating in the settling ponds.  So I am not quite sure what it is there, but it is something from the production process, and somebody may want to go and analyze it some day.  Anyway, that is where that came from.  

Now, I may have gotten some data or facts wrong.  If so, you know, please tell me.  What I am going to relate to you is my understanding of what is generally going on with this property.  It was only a couple of days ago that Stan showed me some of these most recent drawings that showed the contamination plumes.  And there was a big fat arrow on these things that showed what they believed to be    what the State, I gather, who drew these things believed to be the direction of underground water.  In a way it is a good thing that this whole thing dragged on for all of these years because it gave the groundwater time to make a plume.  

Now, here is what I think is going on.  Very crudely, here is the Bay.  And here is the Zeneca property.  Now, the direction of groundwater was like this.  And so you would have to figure that the groundwater was going through here and carrying that down into the Bay.  It is my understanding that some huge clay dam or barrier of some kind was put in here to stop this from happening so that the groundwater would not carry the contaminants into the Bay.  

What do you think is going to happen to the groundwater?  It is not going to stop.  It is probably going to do this and going to do that, wouldn't you think?  Now, by golly, you know what those contamination plumes show?  They show that the stuff is migrating under    here is Stan's and mine and the other property over there.  What those plumes show is exactly what the groundwater would logically be doing if it was stopped here.  It is going to go that way.  It is probably going this way under the Richmond Field Station, but I don't know if somebody drew any wells there.  Somebody should.  

Now if you don't do anything or if you look at this and wave your hands, the groundwater is going to continue to carry this stuff.  And over the next years it is going to go down into the swamp    that marsh, that salt marsh that is south of the pistol range.  And it is going to go over here to wherever.  

Fooling around with a clay cap is good.  It keeps the rain water from soaking in and carrying it off.  But this stuff has migrated deeper.  For all I know Stauffer had an underground well there, and they injected the stuff down maybe 50 or 60 feet.  Anyway, one thing that could be done, since I really don't like saying, "Look how awful it is," and everybody says, "Yes, it is awful"    one thing that could be done and actually what I think should have been done is put a clay barrier around the property so groundwater can't migrate through it.  

If you do that and then do remediation of the modest amount of stuff is that out here    and there are low energy remediation things.  Somebody mentioned chloroform from the BioRad place.  There are bacteria that you can inject underground, nice friendly bacteria like is in your yogurt.  And they inject the curds and whey in the bacteria and they eat the food and they eat the contaminants at the same time.  And this is how they get rid of gasoline that leaked into the water tables.  

So there are low energy ways to deal with the stuff once you stop the groundwater from going through there.  Now, you might say what does that involve.  Well, if this is the ground, what there is underneath, there is a water table at about 65 feet.  And there is some clay and stuff on top of that, some dirt.  I believe there is another very thin water table around 15 to 25 feet.

MS. PADGETT:  Two.  

MR. SMITH:  Two.  Okay.  Now, below this there is some oil shale.  And then from 100 to 130 feet there is another water table.  And then from 130 down to 330 is more oil shale.  And from 330 to 400 is water.  And there is a couple of more big ones down there.  And the old    the Diamond Shamrock plant that was down in the marina place years and years ago drew its water from the 1100 foot table.  And there is a lot of water there.  

Anyway, if there is contamination here, and I got the distinct impression    I think, Stan, didn't you say your well went down to 130 feet or something like that?  

MR. TEADERMAN:  95.

MR. SMITH:  These things are not absolutely level.  Probably they are up like that if you are getting water from that.  If Stan is getting water    if Stan has contamination in his water here, that means that whatever is up here is leaking through some cracks in the oil shale.  So it is spreading, and it is spreading vertically and horizontally and so forth.  Some kind of holes can be drilled and clay and concrete can be injected.  There are engineering solutions to all of these kinds of things.  It is not like nothing can be done.  

The Army Corps of Engineers can do anything, believe me.  So if you wanted to put some kind of a water control plan around the property to keep the contaminants on site, it can be done.  There are probably at least three or four different engineering solutions.  Something like this should be done.  Otherwise the contaminants, as I said, are going to go further and further afield.  And in another 20 years it is going to be here and there and everywhere.  Now that mainly is what I wanted to say.  Does anybody have any particular questions?

MS. PADGETT:  Steve, I would like to make a comment.

MR. SMITH:  Sure.

MS. PADGETT:  There is a non permeable barrier.  I want to say it is about 400 feet long, could be longer, on the west side of the Zeneca site between Zeneca and the UC Richmond Field Station.  And if you look up on the map behind you it runs right along here, along this.

MR. SMITH:  So what you are saying is there is some barrier that was put in over there? 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  And by your map it would be from the horizontal line halfway down, up, up    uh huh, right to there.  So it is about that long.

MR. SMITH:  So there is a barrier about that much? 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  And it was installed for the reasons that you describe, to stop the contamination from migrating west onto the UC Richmond Field Station.  And the barrier that you talk about at the southern end is    yes, it is a biologically active permeable barrier that varies somewhat in height.  It is about 10 feet underground, 10 feet below ground of the original ground surface.  

And the biologically active permeability barrier means that it is about a foot to 18 inches thick made of mulch with the intent to modify the acidity of the water moving from north to south through that barrier.  And that is the primary purpose of it.  And it is fairly functional in that regard.  And it also picks up some of the contaminants as the water moves through that barrier.  

But we do, as you describe, we do have some concern about water possibly pooling as well as going under the barrier and around the barrier.  So we are concerned about the directional change of the water as it has resistance against that barrier.

MR. SMITH:  Hold that thought right there.  You said that the mulch was there to modify the acidity?  

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.

MR. SMITH:  That was probably the cause of precipitation of heavy metals.  It won't do anything for the dichloroethane, dichloroethane. 

MS. PADGETT:  You are right.  Some of the contaminants that are in the upper groundwater horizon, the lower groundwater horizon that are moving through that biologically active permeable barrier are actually moving through the barrier and not affected by that biologically active permeable barrier.  However, there are some contaminants that are reduced.  

So it is    while it is a sieve to some of the contaminants, it is capturing some others.  And that biologically active permeable barrier was installed as kind of a big experiment.  There are some of them around the country, and they expected the life to be about 15 years.  So it was installed at the end of 2002.  And we haven't determined what is going to happen as we move forward.  At some point does it need to be replaced or    and all of that, I am sure, has to be examined as we look at the Feasibility Study and figure out what we are going to do about remediating all of the VOC plumes that are under the cap and under that big pile of fill.  

And we know we have got a problem with the VOC plumes continuing to expand, and what are we going to do with that big barrier that runs about 1800 feet east west along the southern end.

MR. SMITH:  You will have to have a different kind of barrier and a deeper barrier to deal with the organics that seem to have percolated through the oil shale and, I gather, gotten down into the 100 foot water table.

MS. COOK:  I have a comment.

MS. WALLIS:  We'll take this as the last comment to wrap up this period, and then we'll move into an abbreviated Toxics Committee report.

MS. COOK:  Can I borrow that? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Absolutely, and my ballpoint pen. 

MS. COOK:  Let me play devil's advocate as to why I don't like some of your ideas.  

MR. SMITH:  Okay.  

MS. COOK:  They are both going to go up at one point in time.  The mulch wall, it does seem to be working.  And that is one of the aspects that will be discussed in the Feasibility Study as well as probably what will happen is criteria will be developed and established as to when you have to deal with it.  

The concept of clay around the site.  I have a site in Emeryville that has this.  It leaks like a sieve.  It doesn't work.

MR. SMITH:  How about concrete? 

MS. COOK:  You know, the issue with concrete, you are looking at going very deep.  So the issue is, it's an interesting concept but in reality it doesn't work.  It is better for us to sit down here and address the problem and to deal with it.

MR. SMITH:  Okay.

MS. COOK:  We also agree that, you know, the treatment technologies that you were just discussing, we have actually applied a number of those onto this site and they have actually worked.  Where the bacterial walls have    we discussed the curds and whey issues, and it actually does break down the chemicals and you always have to make sure you have enough soup and resources along that line.  It is already well known that the site that I have is Sherwin Williams in Emeryville.  And it leaks like a sieve.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Inaudible).

MS. COOK:  No.  It does not.  The mulch wall only works for metals.  It is the only thing it was designed for.  And sometimes it does work because what it does is it creates a reducing environment, so it does break it down.  Sometimes it works, but it wasn't designed specifically for them. 

Now, the leaking of the well.  Stan, your well is screened from 20 to 100 feet.  It is screened, so the water at 20 feet goes in, the water at 40 feet goes in, and the water at 60 feet goes in.  It doesn't mean that the shale is leaking.  It is the fact that the well is screened in such a way that the groundwater can go in at all times.  And that's why you got the letter from Contra Costa County.  

When you are not using a well on your property and it hasn't been used for I don't know how many years    I will have to go back of the Water Code because it is actually written in the Water Code, you are legally obligated to close that well.  That's why you have that letter.  That's why it is an outstanding issue.  

Let me put the qualifier on the statement of one of the comments I made so that you understand the Department's position with regards to wells like these wells.  If you have a well on your property like this I would strongly recommend you close it immediately.  I know it is not going to be cheap.  I promise you right now it is not going to be cheap.  

However, the Department's policy as well as the federal policy is if you have a well on your property and by the action of having that well it causes contamination that is at a shallower level to go to a deeper well, the Department has the right to call you a responsibility party and make you part of the solution of dealing with the problem.  

So if you have these wells and these wells are not being used, please look at closing these wells.  Have them retrofitted in such a fashion that you do not draw water on such large screen values.  I am sure that you also agree with that, sir.  And I just want to make sure that everybody understands the rules here.  The Department has very strong policies on this.  It feels that these types of wells will exacerbate the problem that exists out here, taking a groundwater contamination that might be in the 20 to 60 or 30 feet and moving it down below    you put down oil shale.  I call it the Yerba Buena Bay muds.  

So it is a problem that exists.  And I would really strongly recommend    I know that these letters have been out there and I am asking you to please seriously look at these letters because these    implementing the comments of these.  Because these letters open the door up for both the Department, the County, and the Water Board who all can come back and say you exacerbated the problem that exists here.  We will go through and figure out where it is and how it fits, but it's important that you take the steps necessary to eliminate that ongoing problem.  

MR. WEINER:  What about the other problem of putting it in here (inaudible)?   

MS. COOK:  As I said, we are going to look at it as part of the FS.  And we'll discuss it and we'll work it through that part of it.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  We'll move now to Dr. Esposito and the Toxics Committee update.  Dr. Esposito?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you very much.  Before we move on I really would like to thank all of the representatives from the Harborfront Tract business area for their presentations this evening.  One of the things that has been very difficult to do is to have input from the affected individuals at these meetings.  And I think you all did a wonderful job and have helped us a great deal in attempting to view this entire area as a single problem rather than piecemealing it.  This is one of the reasons why when we discussed the radiological material of this area we should talk about all of it, HFT, Booker T. Anderson Park, and the Zeneca site and any other data we have.  

So this evening our initial plan was that we would have a presentation regarding the contaminated areas, area T, Marina Bay Village, which Sherry will shortly get on to.  And then we are going to talk a little bit about our continuing assessment of the public health document, the public health assessment of the Zeneca campus site.  

We will not be doing a great deal of that this evening, but I would like to point out to you that one of our concerns in that assessment is that it does not take into consideration the health of residents and workers at the Harborfront Tract, at the nearby UC Richmond Field Station and Marina Bay Village and workers who actually operated at the site and carried out additional remediation, people who lived there during the "Big Dig."  

Our concern is that we cannot parse    if we parse this into individuals areas we may lose a big picture.  We'll get back to that later.  I would like to move on since time is moving on, and we have heard a lot tonight, but I think it has been very profitable and I will move over to Sherry.

MS. PADGETT:  This is going to be just a first of a series of looks at the Marina Bay area and the toxic fills that are buried throughout the Marina Bay Village.  A lot of you remember the box that we have up here.  This is the Tox Com "Out of the Box" logo that we have for the year 2008.  We may come up with another logo for 2009, but we have had a series of Tox Com "Out of the Box" presentations for this year.  This is another one.  And the reason for the logo was to remind everyone that we understand there are regulations that everyone has to work within at all of the agencies.  

And the box represents the comfort zone of those regulations that our regulators work with as well as the City of Richmond and others.  Sometimes it helps to be reminded that there are other ways to look at those regulations and expand the view and still get the work done.  

This is a view of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline area where Marina Bay has the center of it.  You recognize the inner harbor basin, the Ford channel and the harbor channel over here.  This is the UC Richmond Field Station property here and everyone recognizes the Zeneca/Cherokee cap.  This is a figure that we received from DTSC.  And we are very appreciative.  Thank you, Karen Toth, and to your staff for passing it on to us.  It represents the areas were known hazardous material has been deposited and is encapsulated.  

Part of the five year plan review that is going to be submitted soon to DTSC is looking at each of these areas to determine if the encapsulation in the cap are, in fact, in place and looking to be sure that we still have safe operations.  

And the reason we are going through this brief overview of what is at each of these sites is that we are not sure that the community has a real grasp of what is in their neighborhood.  The design for the Marina Bay neighbors was put together in the 1980s.  And as we look back at the practice of leaving buried material in place and in neighborhoods we are not sure this would be the way that we would do it today.  

And as you can see, here we have got houses all through this area and interspersed we have got these little mini toxic dumps.  So we are going to go through four of them tonight.  And what we would really like to see in the long run is DTSC to have kind of a fold out instead of    or maybe a brochure or a single page or a double page document that is available to the public that readily identifies where these toxics fills are in their neighborhoods, kind of like a little brochure of the Bay Trail.  The Bay Trail gives you an identification of where things are located.  Well, it is the same kind of thing about Marina Bay, just a kind of a two pager, front and back, tri fold, what do you have in your neighborhood.  

The first one is Regatta Boulevard.  It is a right of way.  This is a buried area here.  And for those of you who aren't familiar with the neighborhood I'll go back to this map.  It is right here where Regatta Boulevard kind of curves around in front of what is now the Richmond temporary police department.  It used to be the    let's see.  I think it was Fibercom or something, DiCon.  

And at that site there is a deed restriction that was filed on March 21st of 2005.  These words are from the deed restriction.  "There are hazardous materials.  Petroleum, hydrocarbons and lead remain in the soil under the property.  It is encapsulated, contaminated soil, and this is an installation of an asphalt cap.  There is the operation and maintenance agreement that is between Richmond Redevelopment and DTSC.  And all or a portion of the subsurface soils within five feet of the surface of the property contain hazardous substances."  And it contains 5,581 square feet or just a little over a tenth of an acre.  So that one is out in the middle of the street.  

The next one is Shimada Park.  A lot of you, if you have driven out on Marina Bay Parkway, Shimada Park is a park that is in between homes.  I'll go back to that original    this is Shimada park right here, this little green area.  It is right across the street from Area T.  There are homes to the east and homes to the west.  And Area T is across the street.  Shimada Park is three acres bounded on the north by Marina Shores, a vacant lot, Marina Townhomes and to the east by the Breaker residences.  

There are hazardous materials.  There was a deed restriction that was filed in February of 2005.  Petroleum, hydrocarbons and lead remain in the soil.  It is encapsulated with two feet of clean soil on top of it.  And there is an operational maintenance agreement.  And all or a portion of the subsurface soils within five feet of the surface on the property contain hazardous substances including petroleum, hydrocarbons and lead.  

The next one is Vincent Park.  This is down at the very end of the    it is not Marina Bay Parkway.  It turns into    Peninsula Drive.  It is right at the end of Peninsula Drive.  It is six acres, and it's bounded on the north by the Marina Bay.  This one has petroleum and hydrocarbons, and lead remains in the soil.  It is comprised of two separate areas of metal bearing soil.  And all or a portion of the subsurface within 10 feet of the surface on the property contain hazardous substances and it is capped with two feet of clean fill.  And it, too, is overseen by this operation maintenance agreement.  

And the next one is Area V, which is right next to Vincent Park.  And if you drive out here you will see that Area V is a big field of weeds.  It is a little disconcerting.  There are homes that back right up here, and the fence up to the homes looks right onto Area V.  And there is nothing out here except weeds.  And then we have the developed park.  

And this area is, again, hydrocarbons, total petroleum hydrocarbons compared to the others which were just hydrocarbons and lead remain in the soil.  And the cap consists of four feet of clean fill.  And this one is all or a portion of the subsurface soils within 10 feet of the surface on the property containing hazardous substances.  

So we'll go through some more at our next meeting.  And the purpose here being we want to bring it forward to the community so that the community can see what is buried and still remains at each of these locations and keeps the awareness out in the public eye until we can have some kind of a consolidated statement that people can access rather than going to DTSC's EnviroStor Website, which takes quite a while to summarize this kind of data.  

So this was four.  There are twelve.  We will have a couple more sessions.  

MR. MAYES:  Can I say just one thing?  I am Andrew.  The band of contamination, sometimes it was four feet; sometimes it was five feet.  The cap was two feet or five feet above it.  Does that mean five feet below then ten feet down was the contaminant level? 

MS. PADGETT:  That is a really good question, Andrew.  And as I read the deed restrictions I had to make that assumption.  On one deed restriction that was clear, that it was what they called subsurface below the cap.  But the other deed restrictions did not make that clarification.  And I had to make the assumption that it was the original ground surface below with the cap being clean above it.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you very much, Sherry.  What I would like to do is to spend just a little time talking to you about a public health assessment and the response of the CAG and the Toxics Committee to the public health assessment that we received for the Zeneca campus site.  And I would like to look at this in the context of this notion of thinking outside of the box.  

Over the years, and even before I joined this group, it has been clear to the CAG that we prefer an approach to the removal of contaminants which is called the precautionary principle, which states that contaminants should be removed to the extent that it is technically feasible rather than leaving contaminants in the ground at the level that you think might be reasonably innocuous for protection of human health.  

And the reason that we have developed this point of view is that we noted several things.  First of all, it is very difficult to come up with a number for a level of a contaminant carcinogen, mutagen or metal that might lead only to one increased cancer for million persons when you don't take account of the fact that the human population is extraordinarily genetically variable.  

Everyone in this room differs from everyone else in this room at about one in every one thousand base pairs in your DNA.  No two of us are identical.  In point of fact, because of differentiation, not even identical twins are genetically identical any more from a human geneticist's point of view.  So it is a very difficult number to come up with, what is a uniform risk.  I will give you an example in the case of beryllium contamination.  People who become extremely ill with beryllium disease, chronic beryllium disease, represent about 3 percent of the population who carry genetic determinants that allow that immune disorder to develop.  

And beryllium legislation and contaminant levels don't look at that fact.  They are the canaries in the mine.  Those are the individuals that are highly susceptible.  Estimates of what constitute a level of contaminants for toxins that is either going to lead to disease or non cancer disease or cancer estimates of what concentrations are permissible change.  And when they do, they usually go down.  

For example, in my business, with respect to radiation exposure, everybody will take an X-ray for dental work from time to time, but everyone now knows there is no dose of ionizing radiation which will not cause some damage to your DNA.  And then, finally, we have to consider two other factors.  Areas like the Richmond southeast shoreline area have hundreds of contaminants in them.  They may be acting, some of them, multiplicatively.  

We don't have an agency that looks at the possibility that if you have 100 contaminants that instead of acting additively, let's say they involve a cancer determination, they may act multiplicatively.  And we know this happens at the lab.  You can have agents that cause damage to DNA and have agents that cause that damage not to be repaired.  And then you really get the bang for your buck with that mutagen, with the combination, because you cannot have repair.  There are individuals in the human population who do not repair damaged DNA as well as others.  

And then we must look at the socioeconomic condition of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area.  There are many people in our community who don't have routine access to healthcare or to doctors' visits who don't know what their susceptibilities might be and maybe don't know what dangers they are exposed to.  So the notion of cleaning up to the extent feasible is very attractive.  

The difficulty with that is that it is then very important, I think, to really determine what is harmful and what is less harmful.  And that now brings us to the    how we do risk estimation.  Cal-EPA, US-EPA have very complicated mathematical models of how individual toxic material leads to disease.  And usually these formulas involve multiplying various numbers by one another, seven factors    risk factors multiplied together then divided by three others that are multiplied together then multiplied by some other constant.  

Well, the difficulty with that kind of equation is that the errors are multiplied.  There is propagation of error.  And the difficulty with that is those kinds of equations are very hard to solve.  If you want to take ten factors, all of which represent a distribution of numbers, and multiply those distributions through one another to come up with the final answer that includes the error, well, in the old days that took a lot of math genius.  

Consequently, the approach has changed, was changed, taking values for each element in the model that would seem to be most protected.  For example, if we are talking about the area of the skin of a toddler playing in East Stege Marsh, and the area of skin would be important for absorption of toxics, that is estimated to be very large rather than very small.  

And going along, we pick.  When you do that, you transform a knotty statistical problem into a very simple piece of math.  Anybody can multiply seven things together and divide them by three other things.  But what do you end up with?  You end up with a number that doesn't have a confidence limit on it.  When someone says to you that the chances are one in 500,000 that a child playing in East Stege Marsh would have had a cancer owing to lead exposure, you don't know whether that number could mean one in a million, or it could mean one in a thousand.  And no one can answer that question for you because once you have taken all of the variability out of those equations you don't have the answer.  

So what CDPH, Cal-EPA and US-EPA offer as guidance and put in a paragraph that says, "You have to take these risk estimates with a grain of salt."  So if you look at Page 32 of the public health assessment of the Zeneca site you will see a black box which basically tells you take this with a certain amount of skepticism because we don't know for sure. 

That black box reminds me of when I was growing up in Brooklyn we had the local cheapest paper was two cents.  It was called the Daily Mirror.  And it had a horoscope column.  And on top of the horoscope column it said, "The stars impel, but they do not compel.  Your life is largely what you make it."  That is pretty similar to what it said here.  This is the best estimate you can make using simple math.  We can do a lot better.  

In point of fact, the risk literature is full of new programs that can be run on a PC to do the appropriate calculations.  It is called Monte Carlo analysis.  You don't have to be a mathematician, and they're very easy to do.  In fact, it is recommended that they be done in the case of high risk.  For example, in the case of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, Region 3, there was a concern that people were going to be sickened by trichloroethylene in their drinking water and showering water.  

The original estimate was around one in 10,000 based on the simple math.  Well, when you do the Monte Carlo analysis it turns out that value was one in 1,000.  That is a big difference.  And so that city changed    had to redo its water supply. 

So what I am suggesting to you is that if we did risk analysis by the modern technology, which is all over the literature, what we would end up with is fewer cases where the risk is truly high, and, therefore, fewer sites that you would have to clean up totally, and that is the advantage of doing the risk analysis properly, because you can combine it with the precautionary principle, which says when it is really dangerous, take it all away.  

So that is sort of the lesson that comes out of looking at this public health assessment.  And I would like to thank publicly    he isn't here    Rich Single, who is a professor of statistics in the University of Vermont who helped me with some of the issues here.  But this is sort of one way of thinking outside of the box.  It is a win win situation.  Responsible parties may end up having to do less cleanup because you will have a true estimate of risk because all of these old ways of calculating the risk are meant to overestimate.  And we will find the true risks and then we can clean them up.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  I would like to check in with the group.  It is 9:00 o'clock, which was officially our time to adjourn.  And we have three remaining items on the agenda, public comment, the committee updates, and the wrap up activities.  So I would like to request a suggestion from the chair or the CAG of how to proceed.

MR. ROBINSON:  We started a little late.  I think we should end a little late.  And I will make that a motion if I hear any grumbling, and we can take a vote.  But I think if we go ten minutes over it would be good.  I think we all    and I would    after hearing    I am going to make this short.  After hearing from the Harborfront Tract business owners I would like to propose an action item added, but I would like to make it a motion.  I'd like the CAG to consider requesting that DTSC adds the Harborfront Tract to the study area, the affected area, not just to the public health assessment, which we are just wrapping up comments on, but also the Feasibility Study on the RAP.  

MR. BLUM:  Second.

MR. ROBINSON:  We have got a second.  Are there any comments that need to be made?  Sherry?

MS. PADGETT:  The public health assessment was a document that was written by the California Department of Public Health Environmental Health Investigative Branch and the Agency for Toxics Disease for    Toxics Substances and Disease Registration, ATSDR.  And so making a motion should really be split between the two.  

So, in other words, we can't make a motion and ask DTSC to do something with the Public Health Assessment, and we can make a motion to ask the California Department of Public Health to do one thing, and then we can make a motion to ask DTSC to do something, but so the motion to ask DTSC to include the Harborfront Tract in the Feasibility Study and the Remedial Action Plan is probably appropriate and then separate out the other, if that is what you want to do.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think that we are really in a position of writing a supplemental letter, commentary on the PHA.  We have already submitted one.  We have other items that were brought to our attention by Sanjay Ranchod which I would like to include in the supplemental letter as well.  So maybe what we need is a motion for the supplemental letter, and then we could address it to the appropriate people regarding the PHA.

MR. ROBINSON:  So I have made the dual motion, as Sherry clarified for us, but I would like to vote on it as one.  Because I think if we agree with the concept we will agree no matter who we are addressing it to.  

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  I just want to make a comment and then I will give it back to Joe.  I am sorry.  And then Joe can restate the motion.  I just want to thank all of our Harborfront business community for coming and for being so concerned about this issue in terms both of your viability as businesses and the health of your employees and the health of the surrounding community.  I just was very impressed with all of your remarks.  So I wanted to just personally thank you.  

MR. ROBINSON:  I second that.  Thank you.  Let me restate it.  I move to have the CAG request that ATSDR add the Harborfront Tract to the Public Health Assessment and DTSC to add the Harborfront Tract to the study area, affected area, for the Feasibility Study.  

MR. BLUM:  And I second both of those.  

MR. ROBINSON:  We have got a second.  All in favor?  Any opposed?  The "ayes" have it.  Motion passes.  Kay, would you add those as action items? 

MS. WALLIS:  I will.  And I will actually probably refer to the minutes to get the exact wording so we don't have to wordsmith it right now.  Okay.  I am going to put down motion letters just to give myself to placeholder here.  And Dr. Clark has a comment or question.  Was this on    

DR. CLARK:  On the report.  Thank you.  I think that the report was very comprehensive and to the point.  Certainly we should be acting on the precautionary principle because the fact is that, you know, I won't say we, but unfortunately in the companies that have created the problem over the years did it recklessly, contaminated the environment, and put the people at risk in their mad rush for profit and gain.  And they have showed no concern about the environment and human life at all. 

And over the 25 some more years that I have been in this field of work, you know, this story here is just another story added to the many that I have heard all over the world, you know, the same type of nonsense.  It doesn't make no sense and, you know, all of these different type of analyses or whether it is Monte Carlo or whatever, you know, the bottom line is we need to act on the precautionary principle because all of those assessments are basically in isolation.  You know, it is not taken into consideration, here again, of a person's health in the community or, you know    or whether they are drinking or using drugs or in many of those communities all of these conditions exist.  

So if you just, you know, are making some analysis of a person's potential exposure to a chemical and the possibility of cancer or whatever else in isolation, you are not getting to the point.  So the only real thing you can to do to protect the people in the environment is act on the precautionary principle.  You are not going to get it on those analyses.  It just doesn't take into consideration all of those factors and, like I said, with all of the considering of the cumulative impacts and synergistic impacts and all of that you would be trying to study analysis until doomsday.  And that just is not going to get there.  

So hopefully we have learned our lesson and will act on the precautionary principle and be more diligent in trying to hold these companies accountable and protect the environment and human life so that we can start to draw the line on what has happened in the past.  And hopefully we can save some lives and save this planet if it is not too late.

MS. WALLIS:  We have reached the public comment period of the program.  Any hands for public comment, questions from the audience?  Yes.  Please state your name for the transcriptionist. 

MR. KILKENNY:  Good evening, CAG and the public.  My name is Paul Kilkenney.  I am a Richmond resident.  My concern is a Campus Bay flyer that is currently in the Planning and Building Services Department at the City of Richmond.  I guess this flyer gets mailed to those who are on the mailing list of Cherokee CSV/LLC.  I think this flyer, number one, should not be in the City of Richmond public building.  It is very vague.  It doesn't address any of the issues.  It covers    it basically has no substance to it except that it glosses over the history, how it was transferred from the Water Quality Control Board to DTSC and why, why the cleanup is ongoing through 2008, and I guess it is sort of a misinformation being given to the public.  

And I think it is a disservice to the broad public because I don't have the money to put out these fancy things, and I don't think the CAG does either.  So I would request that this not be put    and I am not sure if it should be put in the public building, especially in the City of Richmond.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Other questions or comments from the audience?  We have a comment from the CAG.  Ms. Abbott?  

MS. ABBOTT:  In response to one of the Harborfront people who was speaking about    he said it was crazy to call the chemical evaporation ponds by these other terms.  And in the DTSC report they do call it the fresh water lagoons.  And I agree.  I think you should call them what they are and stop using the sort of euphemistic language that paints it as though it is a fresh water lagoon.  That is not what it is.  So I would request that the DTSC figure out language that describes    you know, maybe it could be the former chemical evaporation ponds.  I mean, I am not sure if that could technically suffice, but this has always disturbed me.  And I think it adds to this sort of    it makes it sound so benign, yeah, so bucolic.  And it is anything but.  So it has to do with the honesty of the language.

MS. WALLIS:  One final comment before we move on to the next agenda item.  

MR. ROBINSON:  Sherry is going to add on to that.

MS. WALLIS:  Two final comments.  Mr. Smith or Ms. Padgett?

MR. SMITH:  What the pond actually was a water evaporation pond and a waste accumulation pond.  Waste was allowed to settle out in the pond.  So it should probably be called a waste accumulation pond or something on that order.  

MR. TEADERMAN:  EDT and all of the other plants, that what it is is a chemical evaluation pond.  If you want to be precise with dialogue with the Stauffer people as it related to the easement that was given to us to change the engineering construction and location of our building.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Padgett? 

MS. PADGETT:  I want to pass on a very deep thanks to the business and property owners who came tonight to speak.  We know that there are a few dozen    three dozen others, and they have similar views.  They can't all be here and come and share everything that is on their mind.  They are business owners and they have got a lot going on in their day to day lives.  Small business owners are really pressed, especially these days with the economy the way it is.  The Harborfront Tract business owners have been side by side with me through thick and thin since early 2004.  And they are very serious and bright people who want the right thing done here.  And I really appreciate you coming to express your views directly to DTSC.  And I hope to see more of you in the future. 

MS. WALLIS:  With that we'll move along to Mr. Robinson and committee updates. 

MR. ROBINSON:  I am going to carry over the committee updates to the next meeting other than to thank Barbara Cook for the past response for the status of funds, the response from their legal department.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.

MR. ROBINSON:  And Carolyn, I will leave that up to you if you want to confirm the minutes from the previous meeting or carry it over.  

MS. GRAVES:  Okay.  I have handed out the minutes to the people that don't have e mail that are here tonight.  All in favor of approving the minutes?  The only changes from what I e mailed out was the attendee list.  I had forgotten there were a couple of people that needed to be added to that.  Otherwise    oh, and Steve graciously filled in a few inaudible things and some minor typo type things.  So with the pleasure of the CAG I would like a motion to approve the prior meeting minutes.  

MR. BLUM:  So moved.  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Motion passes.  Thank you very much.

MS. WALLIS:  If there are any question slips or agenda requests that you have recorded on the green slips, please make sure they get to either me or Ms. Graves.  There is a comment or question from Mr. Blum.  

MR. BLUM:  I have a question.  It is referring to an issue that we covered previous to this meeting.  So it is a question for Barbara.  She is gone.  Well, then, I will ask her that privately.  Never mind.

MS. WALLIS:  Our next meeting is scheduled for the seconds Thursday in October.  October   

MR. ROBINSON:  Kay, before we wind up I just wanted to say welcome to the new DTSC reps, Larry Woodson and Yvette LaDuke.  And I look forward to meeting you at the next meeting and establishing a good working relationship.  

MS. WALLIS:  October 9th is the next meeting.  We have three action items which will be circulated with the CAG Executive Committee and relative parties at CSV and DTSC.  And we thank you very much for your participation tonight.  

(The meeting was adjourned.)
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